
 
NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

04/03/22 Our Ref Baldock and District Committee/14.03.22 
 Contact. Committee Services 
 Direct Dial. (01462) 474655 
 Email. committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
 
To: Members of the Committee: Councillor Jim McNally, Councillor Michael Muir, Councillor Juan 

Cowell, Councillor Steve Jarvis, Councillor Tom Tyson and Councillor Michael Weeks 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A  

 

MEETING OF THE BALDOCK AND DISTRICT COMMITTEE 
 

to be held at 
 

GREYSLATES COURT, WESTON WAY, BALDOCK 
 

On 
 

MONDAY, 14TH MARCH, 2022 AT 7.30 PM  

 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Thompson 
Service Director – Legal and Community 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk


 

 
 

**MEMBERS PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU DOWNLOAD ALL  
AGENDAS AND REPORTS VIA THE MOD.GOV APPLICATION 

ON YOUR TABLET BEFORE ATTENDING THE MEETING** 

 
 

Agenda 
Part l 

 
Item  Page 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
   
2.   MINUTES - 6 DECEMBER 2021 

To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 6 December 2021. 

(Pages 5 
- 8) 

   
3.   NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS 

Members should notify the Chair of other business which they wish to be 
discussed at the end of either Part I or Part II business set out in the agenda. 
They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business 
being considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Chair will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered. 

 

   
4.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any 
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chair 
of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant 
item on the agenda.  Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members 
declaring a Declarable Interest, wishing to exercise a ‘Councillor Speaking 
Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public 
area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the 
debate and vote. 

 

   
5.   HERTFORDSHIRE CONSTABULARY 

To receive the annual update from Hertfordshire Constabulary on their work 
in the Baldock & District area. 

 

   
6.   AFFINITY WATER UPDATE    
   
7.   ENVIRONMENT AGENCY UPDATE    
   
8.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To receive petitions, comments and questions from the public. 
 

   
9.   GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE 

To advise the Committee of the activities and schemes with which the 
Community Engagement Officer has been involved in. 

(Pages 9 
- 26) 

   
10.   BALDOCK COMMUNITY EVENTS    



 

   
11.   WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' 

REPORTS 
To receive any verbal reports from Members regarding Ward matters and 
Outside Organisations. 

 

   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

BALDOCK AND DISTRICT COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD IN THE MAIN HALL, BALDOCK COMMUNITY CENTRE  
ON MONDAY, 6TH DECEMBER, 2021 AT 7.30 PM 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Councillor Jim McNally (Chair), Councillor Michael Muir 

(Vice-Chair), Councillor Juan Cowell, Tom Tyson and Michael Weeks 
 
In Attendance: Ashley Hawkins (Community Engagement Officer) and James Lovegrove 

(Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer) 
 
Also Present: At the commencement of the meeting approximately 1 member of the 

public. 
 

25 WELCOME  
 
Audio recording -  
 
The Chair welcomed Members, Officers and public to the Committee meeting.  
 

26 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Audio recording –  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Steve Jarvis.  
 

27 MINUTES - 4 OCTOBER 2021  
 
Audio Recording –  
 
Councillor Jim McNally, as Chair, proposed and Councillor Michael Weeks seconded and it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 4 October 2021 be 
approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chair. 
 

28 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Audio recording –  
 
There was no other business notified. 
 

29 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio recording –  
 
(1) The Chair advised that, in accordance with Council Policy, the meeting would be audio 

recorded; 
 
(2) Members were reminded to make declarations of interest before an item, the longer 

reminder about this and speaking rights was set out under Chair’s Announcements on 
the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Monday, 6th December, 2021  

30 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Audio recording –  
 
There was no public participation.  
 

31 GRANTS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE  
 
Audio recording –  
 
The Community Engagement Officer presented the report entitled ‘Grants and Community 
Update’ and included:  
 

 Updated Members on the outstanding balances for grant funds.  

 Advised of possible future grant applications and encouraged Members to advise any 
groups that may require funding that they can apply for Area Grants by the middle of 
January 2022.  

 Reviewed the events in the town since the last meeting and discussed plans and 
involvement of upcoming events.  

 
Councillor Michael Muir advised that, should the Coronavirus Support Group apply for grant 
funding at a future meeting, he would likely be a trustee and would therefore declare an 
interest at the appropriate time.  
 
The following Members took part in the debate and asked questions:  
 

 Councillor Tom Tyson  

 Councillor Michael Muir  

 Councillor Jim McNally  

 Councillor Juan Cowell 
 
The debate and questions included the following points: 
 

 The Baldock Big Lunch was unable to happen this year, but was now scheduled for 5 June 
2022 to coincide with the Platinum Jubilee weekend.  

 The Baldock Beast was impacted by the weather and the event was forcibly scaled back 
due to this, but still had around 350 runners attend.  

 The Remembrance Day events took place and had around 300 people attend. 

 Councillor McNally noted that it was disappointing that no hymns were sung this year due 
to Covid restrictions. Councillor Muir, as President of the Royal British Legion in Baldock, 
advised that this was due to a decision taken when cases were still high, but hymns would 
return for future events.  

 The Baldock Christmas Market took place successfully this year. Stallholders were inside, 
rather than on the High Street as previously, and this had received positive feedback.  

 Owing to Covid restrictions still in place the Trips Up The Tower at St Mary’s Church were 
unable to go ahead.  

 Social media feedback from the event had been overwhelmingly positive.  
 
Councillor Juan Cowell requested that more emphasis be given to promoting events in the 
town on social media, as often he only knew of events through updates received as a 
Councillor.  
 
Councillor Jim McNally wished to express his thanks to the musicians and performers who 
had performed at the Baldock Christmas Fair free of charge.  
 

Page 6



Monday, 6th December, 2021  

Councillor Jim McNally, as Chair, proposed and Councillor Michael Weeks seconded and it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee endorse the actions taken by the Community Engagement 
Officer to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Baldock.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
(1) To ensure the Committee is kept informed of the work of the Community Engagement 

Officer. 
 
(2) This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the 

Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the 
effective financial management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all 
actions are performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s 
Constitution, and the guidance of the existing Grants policy as agreed by Cabinet in 
January 2020.  

 
(3) The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations and the use of 

discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Council Plan. 
 

32 WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' REPORTS  
 
Audio recording –  
 
Members gave updates on issues in their Wards, including:  
 
Councillor Michael Weeks advised that there had been another graffiti attack on the A1 
viaduct, which he had removed.  
 
Councillor Michael Muir advised that the County Council Highways Funds for 2021/22 had 
been allocated, but there was around £30,000 available for schemes in 2022/23. He 
encouraged Members to contact him with possible suggestions where these outstanding funds 
could be spent.  
 
Councillor Juan Cowell suggested that the benches by the War Memorial had become unsafe 
and should be removed. He suggested that sponsorship of new benches could be sought from 
local businesses.  
 
Councillor Muir advised that there had been a request from the Wilkie family to have a bench 
on the High Street in honour of Nurse Wilkie who had worked in the town.  
 
Councillor Weeks highlighted that the NHC Free Tree giveaway was happening in Avenue 
Park on 9 December 2021, 11am to 4pm.  
 
Councillor Tom Tyson advised that there was a contingency plan for any remaining trees after 
the giveaway.  
 
Councillor Cowell suggested that an area of land be set aside for those who wish to get 
involved in the project but whose gardens could not fit a tree.  
 
Councillor Tyson agreed and suggested that farmers may be willing to agree to this in some 
locations.  
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.10 pm 

Chair 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

BALDOCK COMMITTEE 
14 MARCH 2022 

 

 
*PART 1 – PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE 
 
REPORT OF: THE POLICY & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
COUNCIL OBJECTIVES: BUILD THRIVING AND RESILIENT COMMUNITIES  
 

 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To advise the Committee on the current expenditure and balances of the Committee 

Grant budgets 
 
1.2 To advise the Committee of the activities and schemes with which the Community 

Engagement Officer has been involved in. 
 

1.3 To bring to the Committee’s attention some important community-based activities that 
will take place during the next few months. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Committee be recommended to consider allocating funding from their 

discretionary community budget towards the project below. 
 
£850 to Ashwell Playgroup to assist with venue hire costs for 1 academic term. 
(Summer) as outlined in 8.1.1. 
 
£980 to Ashwell Tennis & Sports Club to assist with costs for the purchase of a new 
clubhouse at the venue as outlined in 8.1.2. 
 
£862 to Knights Templar School for the purchase of gardening equipment and litter 
picking equipment that will be used by two extra-curricular groups at the school as 
outlined in 8.1.3. 
 
£949 to Nightingale Residents Association to assist with costs for repair and 
maintenance works at Nightingale Park as outlined in 8.1.4. 
 
£1000 to Nova Wellness CIC to assist with costs for running two, one-hour sessions for 
20 carers based in Baldock as outlined in 8.1.5. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9



 
2.2      That the Committee agrees that any unspent funds from the 2021/22 financial year be  
           allocated to Community & Environmental Initiatives for the 2022/23 period. 
 
2.3      That the Committee be recommended to endorse the actions taken by the Community  
           Engagement Officer to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Baldock. 
 
 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To ensure the Committee is kept informed of the work of the Community Engagement 

Officer. 
 
3.2 This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the 

Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the 
effective financial management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all 
actions are performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s 
Constitution, and the guidance of the existing Grants policy as agreed by Cabinet in 
January 2020. 

 
3.3 The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations and the use of 

discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Council Plan. 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1. There are no alternative options being proposed other than those detailed within the text 

of this report. However, during debate at committee, Members may wish to comment 
and offer additional views on any of the items included within this report. 
 

5. CONSULTATION WITH RELEVANT MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 
 
5.1 Consultation with Members has occurred in connection with the allocation of funds for    

Community Projects 
 
5.2 Consultation with the respective officers and external bodies/groups has taken place 

regarding funding proposals for Committee Funds. 
 
6. FORWARD PLAN 
 
6.1 This report does not contain a recommendation on a key Executive decision and has 

therefore not been referred to in the Forward Plan. 
 
7. BACKGROUND 
 
7.1 With reference to the Council’s Constitution, Section 9.3 Area Committees will include 

budgets for the purpose of providing grants and discretionary budgets that may be used 
within the area of the Committee for economic, social and environmental well-being. 
Under the current grant criteria there is no upper limit outlined for grant funding to be 

Page 10



allocated which can be decided at the Committee’s discretion. 
 
7.2 Members are asked to note the information detailed in Appendix 1. Baldock Area 

Committee Budget Spread sheet, which relates to the Area Committee budget balances 
for 2021/22. The spreadsheet also details pre-allocated sums carried forward from the 
previous financial year, including balances and past expenditure. 

 
 
7.3 Funding available for the Committee to allocate during 2021/22 is summarised below: 
 
          2020/21 Carry Forward     2021/22 Base Budget       Total Budget 

 
 Baldock Town  £1,148           £2,400             £3, 548 
 

Baldock East  £842   £1,000             £1,842 
 

Arbury   £60   £900             £960 
 

Weston & Sandon £207   £700             £907 

 
    £2,257   £5,000            £7,257 

 
 
 
8. RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS 
  
8.1 Grant Applications 
 
8.1.1 

Applicant Ashwell Playgroup 
Project Funding support to assist with venue hire costs for 1 

academic term. (Summer) 
Sum requested £850 
Total project cost £1,750 
Match funding £500 from fundraising, £400 from subscriptions 
Previous support Yes, £570 in 2021 and £700 in 2020 to assist with 

venue hire costs during the Pandemic 
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objective: Build thriving and resilient communities 

 
Ashwell Playgroup is seeking funding support from the Baldock & District Committee to 
assist with venue hire costs for 1 academic term. (Summer) 
 
Ashwell Playgroup has been providing pre-school education for children of Ashwell and 
the surrounding villages since 1975.  It is a registered charity that is made up of 5 
Volunteer Committee Members, 2 Full time paid staff, 3 Part time paid staff and 4 
Volunteers.  The Playgroup caters for 23 families currently.  As with a lot of groups, 
Ashwell Playgroup has been affected by the ongoing Pandemic which has impacted on 
numbers attending and the group’s ability to fundraise.  The group has previously 
received funding support for room hire costs in 2021 and 2020 but before this the group 
has never applied for funding for room hire costs and has been self-sufficient. Funding 

Page 11



was awarded in 2015 and 2011 but for items of equipment.  The application is criteria 
compliant, and the group has advised that any shortfall in funding can be met from 
reserves or further fundraising. 

 
8.1.2 

Applicant Ashwell Tennis & Sports Club 
Project Funding support to assist with costs for new 

clubhouse at the venue 
Sum requested £980 
Total project cost £21,300 
Match funding £12,510 from club reserves, £4090 from fundraising 

efforts and £3,600 from other fundraising streams 
Previous support Yes, £300 in 2011 for 2 netball posts and nets  
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objective: Build thriving and resilient communities 

 
Ashwell Tennis and Sports Club is seeking funding support from the Baldock & District 
Committee to assist with costs for the purchase of a new clubhouse at the venue which 
can be used for changing, meetings, equipment storage and simply as an area to keep 
dry when it is raining. 
 
Ashwell Tennis Club has been operating in Ashwell since 1961 and provides tennis for 
all ages.  It is a club with around 300 members.  The club is made up of 8 Volunteer 
Committee members.  The Club has 2 tennis courts and parking for users. The group is 
looking for financial support to assist with the purchase of a club house facility at the 
venue.  This would be an area for changing, storage, meetings, and a possible 
community hub for the wider community.  As well as having members from Ashwell, the 
club also has 3 individual members from Baldock as well as 2 family memberships.  The 
group has secured significant match funding.  The Baldock Community Engagement 
Officer has advised the group that any funding will only be released on receipt of planning 
application approval and when all funding required for the project is secured.  The 
application is criteria compliant.  The funding required is more than the Arbury Ward 
Member has in his budget and the group has been informed that there is another 
application coming to the Committee for funding from Ashwell. The group is confident 
that any shortfall in funding can be met from own funds or further fundraising / funding 
applications. 

 
8.1.3 

Applicant Knights Templar School 
Project Funding support to assist with the purchase of 

gardening equipment and litter picking equipment that 
will be used by two extra-curricular groups at the 
school 

Sum requested £862 
Total project cost £1,012.39 
Match funding £150 from fundraising efforts 
Previous support Yes, £1,338 in 2011 for the purchase of sound 

equipment for the school  
NHDC Policy met Yes 

Page 12



Council objective: Build thriving and resilient communities 
 

Knights Templar School is seeking funding support from the Baldock & District 
Committee for the purchase of gardening equipment and litter picking equipment that will 
be used by two extra-curricular groups at the school, namely the Green Knights which is 
a lunchtime club and those involved in the Duke of Edinburgh Award Scheme.  Both 
groups are involved in outdoor conservation activities. 
 
Both the Green Knights Group and those students involved in the DoE Award Scheme 
have given a great deal to the community and conservation of the area.  The Gardening 
club (part of Green Knights) is restarting after a gap due to COVID. The garden has been 
neglected for the last 2 years and needs clearing and replanting. Since 2020, KTS have 
supported students to volunteer through helping to plant a new woodland at Ivel Springs 
with Baldock Rotary Club, as well as organising litter picks, nature-focused citizen 
science projects and supporting smaller Silver DofE groups to work towards the John 
Muir Award. The students also support the work carried out by Friends of Baldock Green 
Spaces, Baldock Rotarians, Revivel and Baldock Beats Waste.  The new equipment will 
enable more students to get involved in Conservation initiatives and Community 
Projects.  Equipment the group is looking to purchase includes spades, forks, rakes, 
gardening gloves, a wheelbarrow, chicken wire, fencing, garden knee pads, litter pickers 
etc.  The application is criteria compliant. 

 
8.1.4 

Applicant Nightingale Residents Association 
Project Funding support to assist with costs for repair and 

maintenance works at Nightingale Park. 
Sum requested £949 
Total project cost £1,660 
Match funding £650.84 from S106 Community Safety funds 
Previous support Yes, £230 in 2013 for the purchase of banners to 

promote the park.  
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objective: Build thriving and resilient communities 

 
Nightingale Residents Association are seeking funding support from the Baldock & 
District Committee to assist with costs for repair and maintenance works at Nightingale 
Park.  This includes the remarking of the basketball court which is well used by youths 
in the local area and repair works to the bench in the Community Garden area which has 
been vandalised. 
 
Nightingale Park is a well-used facility located off Weston Way in Baldock.  The park 
benefits from a popular Basketball Court, a park with equipment for younger children and 
a community /conservation area.  The funding requested is to re-mark the basketball 
court which is well used by the youth of Baldock and also to repair a damaged bench in 
the conservation area.  Nightingale Residents Association are working with the Settle 
Group on a larger project to replace one of the basketball posts and to purchase fencing 
to stop the ball hitting park users in the conservation area.  The Baldock Community 
Engagement Officer has checked but there are no S106 Leisure monies available for 
this project.  The Officer has signposted the Residents Association to numerous funding 

Page 13



streams such as Sport England and Awards for All.  The group will require Planning 
Permission for the fencing project and also consent from the Settle Group.  Part funding 
for this project has been allocated from the S106 Community Safety pot which was also 
utilised for the marking of the basketball court 9 years ago.  The application is criteria 
complaint. 

 
8.1.5 

Applicant Nova Wellbeing 
Project Funding support to assist with costs for running two, 

one-hour sessions for 20 carers based in Baldock. 
Sum requested £1,000 
Total project cost £1,200 
Match funding £95 from own funds and £105 from Carers in Herts 

group. 
Previous support Yes, £975 in 2021 from the Letchworth & District 

Committee for Therapy events.  
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objective: Build thriving and resilient communities 

 
The Nova Wellness CIC provides holistic therapies and treatments to improve the well-
being of community members. We are applying for funding to provide GROUP WELL-
BEING THERAPY EVENTS for Carers in Baldock. Unpaid Carers provide a huge service 
to the community saving the NHS millions of pounds each year.  
 
Nova Wellness feel the events will be good value for money because they will help carers 
who look after a member of their family, to have quality time out to themselves, will help 
recharge their batteries and support them in their role as primary carers.  
 
Nova Wellness is a Community Interest Company that was set up in 2021.The group is 
made of 1 Volunteer Committee Member, 1 Fulltime Paid Staff, 6 Parttime paid staff and 
5 volunteers. The group is based in Stevenage but works across North Herts.  The 
funding requested is to provide two one-hour sessions for 20 carers based in Baldock. 
The funding will pay for four events for up to 20 carers each. There will be a minimum of 
two therapists and an additional staff member at the events, as well as supporting staff 
back in the office. 
 
The format of the group sessions will be 1hr of group therapy such as guided relaxation 
and 1hr of insightful therapy demonstrations, tasters, and short treatments, for example 
acupuncture, sound bowls, relaxing shoulder massage and other. Our therapists will be 
on sight an hour prior to the event for set up and to welcome the clients arriving to the 
session. The application is criteria compliant. 

 
8.2. Future Grants 
 The Baldock Community Engagement Officer (CEO) has been working with a number of   
            groups / organisations who are seeking funding support from the Baldock & District   
            Committee.  Due to several factors these applications were not able to be  

 tabled at the October meeting so have been deferred until a future meeting.  Details of 
the applications are included in the table below:    

 

Page 14



 

Group 
 

Project Funding Requested 

Haven Group The funding requested is to 
cover costs for activities 
planned for those at the 
Shelter at Templars, Baldock 
for a period of 6 months. 
 

Group has sufficient funds 
currently but will approach 
the Committee later in 2022. 

Baldock Run Talk 
Run 

This is a group for people 
who wish to use running to 
help with mental health and 
is part of a bigger family 
nationwide. Funding is 
requested for hoodies / t-
shirts, marketing initiatives 
and promotional materials. 
 

Group currently does not 
need funding but may 
approach the Committee 
later in 2022 

Baldock vs 
Coronavirus 
Support Group 

This group is seeking to 
assist those who have been 
adversely affected by the 
Coronavirus Pandemic. This 
might include counselling 
support, careers advice and 
financial assistance.  This 
group will provide a crucial 
service in Baldock in the 
aftermath of the Pandemic    
 

Funding requested to be 
confirmed as group is still in 
the process of setting itself 
up as a registered charity. 

St Marys 
Community 
Fireworks 

St Marys PTA is seeking 
funding support to assist with 
publicity and equipment 
costs for the event in 
November. 

Funding requested unknown 
but an application will be 
submitted to the Committee 
later in 2022. 

NESSIE (North 
Herts Emotional 
Support in Schools 
Service) 

This group is seeking 
funding support to provide an 
urgent counselling service to 
vulnerable children and 
families needing support 
following the latest lockdown.  
NESSIE is currently 
inundated with requests for 
support in Baldock, 
Letchworth and Hitchin.  This 
is high-end need where the 
children have neurodiversity 
and have experienced 
trauma.  

The group was successful in 
securing funding from the 
Health Protection Board so 
no longer needs funding 
from the Committee. 

Page 15



  
 

 
8.2 Community Engagement Updates  
 
8.2.1 Farmers on Christmas Lights Tour 
 

On Saturday 18th December around 100 tractors all decorated and lit up for Christmas, 
visited Baldock, Letchworth and Hitchin.  This event was a fundraiser for the Garden 
House Hospice.  The Baldock CEO assisted the organisers with the paperwork required 
by the North Herts Safety Advisory Group, arranged the suspension of the carpark in 
Hitchin for the safe congregation of the tractors at the end of the parade and also 
provided marshal support on the night. 
 
The event was a huge success and was well supported by residents in Baldock, 
Letchworth and Hitchin and raised over £7.5k for the Garden House Hospice. 
 
The event will return in 2022 and will use the same route and will be held on Saturday 
17th December. 

 
8.2.2 Baldock Beast Half Marathon 
 

The Baldock Beast Half Marathon will be held for a tenth time on Sunday 27th February 
2022.  Due to Covid, the 2021 event was held on 31st October and as a result of the short 
time period between the events, uptake for the 2022 event has been down compared 
with previous years with around 200 expected to take part on 27th February.  This 
compares with 350 for the 2021 event and 400 for the 2019 event. 
 
The Baldock Community Engagement Officer (CEO) has assisted the Baldock Events 
Forum with the planning of the event including publicity and promotion on social media, 
First Aid cover, Portaloo provision and erection of the advanced warning signage around 
the course. 
 
The Baldock CEO will also provide support on race day, including checking the course 
and signage prior to the race, providing marshal support at a key junction and removal 
of all race signage at the close of the event. 

 
8.2.3 Street Food Heroes  

 
The Baldock CEO is working with the Baldock Events Forum and the organiser of Street 
Food Heroes for the return of this popular event for Baldock High Street.  Street Food 
Heroes consists of 7-8 food vendors, a mobile bar and DJ.  Food vendors for the event 
are carefully selected so as not to impact on the many wonderful eateries of the town but 
to offer something different.   
 
Street Food Heroes will trade under the Baldock Events Forum’s Street Trading Licence 
but will have their own Temporary Event Notice (TEN) rather than operate under the 
Forums Premises Licence. 
 

Page 16



The Baldock CEO has assisted Street Food Heroes with licensing paperwork and 
consent from Highways for holding the event on Highways land.  The Baldock CEO will 
also arrange the suspension of parking bays for event. 
 
Street Food Heroes will be visiting Baldock High Street monthly on a Friday from April 
through to September 2022. 
 
As well as being an income generator for the Baldock Events Forum, these events will 
also encourage people to come to the town centre and drive footfall for the local 
businesses. 

 
8.2.4 Baldock EcoFest Event 
  

The second ever EcoFest Event for Baldock will be held on Saturday 7th May 2022.   The 
Baldock CEO will again be assisting the organisers with event paperwork, suspension 
of parking and event promotion and publicity.  As with the 2021 event, EcoFest will give 
residents of Baldock and the surrounding villages the opportunity to talk with local 
experts on a range of issues including reducing food waste, growing your own produce, 
upcycling and crafting and recycling and composting.   

 
8.2.5 Baldock Festival 
 

The Baldock Festival will be returning to Baldock in May 2022.  The two-week festival 
will start with the Beer Festival which will be held over the Early May Bank Holiday 
weekend.  This event is very popular and as well as being a key community event is also 
raising funds for some key charities in the area. 
 
The showpiece event of the Baldock Festival is the Baldock Street Festival Day which 
will be held on Saturday 14th May.  The Baldock CEO is working with the Festival 
Committee on all event paperwork and has also arranged the First Aid for 3 of the events 
during the two-week festival.    
 
The Baldock CEO will also arrange the suspension of parking for the Baldock Street 
Festival Day and the Baldock Classic Car Show and will also provide support during the 
set up and take down of the events.  

 
8.2.6 Baldock Big Lunch  

The Baldock Big Lunch was due to be held for a ninth time on Sunday 4th July but was 
unfortunately cancelled just a week before the event due to the ongoing Pandemic and 
concerns about social distancing.  The new date for the event in 2022 was originally 
Sunday 12th June but this has been amended now to Sunday 5th June to coincide with 
the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee.  The Baldock CEO will be assisting the Baldock Events 
Forum with the preparations for this event including the paperwork as requested by the 
North Herts Safety Advisory Group. The Baldock CEO will assist with the promotion and 
publicity for the event and will provide support on the day with event set up and take 
down. 
 

 
8.2.7 Ashwell Recreation Ground 

Page 17



 
The Baldock CEO is assisting Ashwell Parish Council to find funding for new play 
equipment for the recreation ground.  The Baldock CEO has identified £26k from S106 
Play Space that can be utilised for this project.  The Baldock CEO will be meeting with 
the Parish Council in the coming months to move this project forward. Due to the 
ongoing Pandemic, it has not yet been possible to set up a meeting amongst all parties 
but this will be further investigated in 2022.  
 
The Baldock CEO will also be working with Ashwell Parish Council on the pavilion 
project during 2022. 

 
8.2.8 Sandon Sports & Social Club 
 

The Baldock CEO has been successful in finding S106 monies to assist Sandon Sports 
& Social Club with costs for replacing the cladding at the venue.  £5619.33 has been 
allocated to this project from S106 monies for Sandon.  The club has been able to 
source the other funding required for the project with works set to be completed by July 
2022. 
 

8.2.9 Funding support for venues via the Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grants 
 

The Baldock CEO has signposted the numerous community buildings of the town 
including the Baldock Community Centre and Baldock Arts & Heritage Centre to 
funding that is available from NHC Business grants.  Depending on the rateable value 
of the premises, each building will receive a grant of between £2.5k and £6k.  This 
funding will be crucial for community venues which are still struggling financially due to 
the ongoing Pandemic. 

 
 
8.3 Highways Matters 

 
8.3.1 This section is included within the community update report for each committee cycle to 

facilitate debate and enable appropriate feedback on any of the proposed or listed 
Highways related schemes.   

 
8.3.2 Any new proposals or revised schemes will be forwarded to the respective Herts County 

Councillor for  consideration who will in turn report back and advise the Committee 
accordingly. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Sections 9.8.1 (a) and 9.8.1 (b) of the Council’s Constitution in respect of the Area 

Committees’ Terms of Reference, notes the following:-  To allocate discretionary 
budgets within the terms determined by the Council and to allocate devolved budgets 
and activities within the terms determined by the Council. This is outlined in the current 
Grant Policy agreed by Cabinet in January 2020.   Section 9.8.2 (h) of the Constitution 
in respect of Area Committees’ Terms of Reference notes that they may:- Establish and 
maintain relationships with outside bodies/voluntary organisations operating specifically 

Page 18



with the area including, where appropriate, the provision of discretionary grant 
aid/financial support etc. but excluding grants for district-wide activities. 

 
9.2 Chapter 1, s1-8 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a General Power of Competence 

which gives local authorities the powers to do anything provided that it is not specifically 
prohibited in legislation. 

 
9.3 Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides specific authority for the Council 

to incur expenditure on anything which is in the interests of and will bring direct benefit 
to its area.  This includes a charity or other body operating for public service. 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 As outlined in Appendix 1 Committee budget 2020/21. 
 
10.2 The agreed base budget for this financial year is £5,000. Combined with the carry 

forward amounts from the 2019/20 financial year, the Committee has £7,257 left to 
allocate at the final meeting in the current financial year.  The grant applications to be 
considered at this meeting total £4,641 which if all grants are awarded would leave 
£2,616 to be carried forward to 2022/23. 

 
 

11. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no relevant risk entries that have been recorded on Pentana Risk, the 

Council’s performance and risk system. Individual events should have their own risk 
assessments in place to mitigate any health and safety issues. Whenever a request for 
grant funding for equipment is received, the recipient of the funding will be advised to 
obtain insurance for the item to avoid a repeat request for funding in the event of the 
equipment being stolen or damaged. There are no pertinent risk implications for the 
Authority associated with any items within this report. 

 
12. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the exercise of their 

functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those 
who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 

12.2. Area committee funding is awarded to community groups that clearly demonstrate 
positive impact on the community and wider environment. The projects outlined in this 
report seek to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 
 
 
 

13. SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. The Social Value Act and “go local” requirements do not apply to this report. 
 

Page 19



14. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
14.1 There are no known Environmental impacts or requirements that apply to this report. 
 
14.2 The grant application for Knights Templar School (section 8.1.3) proposes the 

purchase of equipment to assist with gardening and litter picking locally. This has the 
potential to create a positive environmental impact through enabling the continuation of 
conservation efforts and increasing the quality of the local environment.  

 
 
 
15. HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 There are no pertinent Human Resource implications associated with any items within 
 this report. 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 
16.1 Appendix 1 - 2020/21 financial year budget sheet. 
 
17. CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
17.1 Author:  Ashley Hawkins, Community Engagement Officer for Baldock & Royston 

Email:  ashley.hawkins@north-herts.gov.uk ext.4225 
 

Contributors: Reuben Ayavoo, Policy & Community Engagement Manager 
   Email: reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4212 
 

Anne Miller, Assistant Accountant   
  Email:  Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4374 
 
  Yvette Roberts, Legal Officer 
  Email: Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4310 
  
  Rebecca Webb , HR Operations Manager 
  Email: rebecca.webb@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4481 

 
   Tim Everitt, Performance & Risk Officer 

Email: tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4646 
 

Georgina Chapman, Policy Officer 
Email: georgina.chapman@north-herts.gov.uk  ext. 4121 

 
18. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
18.1 Review of Policies and Procedures for Financial Assistance to Voluntary and Community 

Organisations, November 2002. 
 
18. 2 Review of Grant Policy Cabinet February 2020. 

Page 20

mailto:ashley.hawkins@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.webb@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:georgina.chapman@north-herts.gov.uk


 
 
 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



FUNDS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM 2020/21

SUMMARY/ TOTALS Funding Allocated Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
BALDOCK TOWN £2,528 £1,380 £1,380 £0 £1,148
BALDOCK EAST £1,262 £420 £420 £0 £842
ARBURY £880 £820 £820 £0 £60
WESTON & SANDON £357 £150 £150 £0 £207

Total £5,027 £2,770 £2,770 £0 £2,257

2021/22 BUDGETS

SUMMARY/ TOTALS Funding Allocated Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
BALDOCK TOWN £2,400 £0 £0 £0 £2,400
BALDOCK EAST £1,000 £0 £0 £0 £1,000
ARBURY £900 £0 £0 £0 £900
WESTON & SANDON £700 £0 £0 £0 £700

Total £5,000 £0 £0 £0 £5,000

BALDOCK TOWN Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

Funds Brought Forward from 

2020/21 £2,528

Magic Moments £380 21/06/2021 £380 £0

Baldock District Guides Association £1,000 04/10/2021 £1,000 £0

Total £2,528 £1,380 £1,380 £0 £1,148

BALDOCK TOWN Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

2021/22 Base Budget £2,400

Total £2,400 £0 £0 £0 £2,400

BALDOCK EAST Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

BALDOCK AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET 2021/22

P
age 23



Funds Brought Forward from 

2020/21 £1,262

Magic Moments £120 21/06/2021 £120 £0

Baldock District Guides Association £300 04/10/2021 £300 £0

Total £1,262 £420 £420 £0 £842

BALDOCK EAST Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

2021/22 Base Budget £1,000 £0

£0

£0

£0

Total £1,000 £0 £0 £0 £1,000

ARBURY Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

Funds Brought Forward from 

2020/21 £880 Ashwell Playgroup £570 21/06/2021 £570 £0

Greening Ashwell £250 21/06/2021 £250 £0

£0

£0

Total £880 £820 £820 £0 £60

ARBURY Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

2021/22 Base Budget £900

£0

£0

£0

£0

Total £900 £0 £0 £0 £900

WESTON & SANDON Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

Funds Brought Forward from 

2020/21 £357 Baldock District Guides Association £150 04/10/2021 £150 £0

£0

£0

P
age 24



£0

Total £357 £150 £150 £0 £207

WESTON & SANDON Funding Project Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

2021/22 Base Budget £700 £0

Total £700 £0 £0 £0 £700

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 6 DECEMBER 2021
	Minutes

	9 GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE
	Copy of Baldock  Committee Budget Sheet for March 2022 meeting.xlsx


